
 
 
 

 
 
 
          28 June 2016 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Wednesday, 6 July 2016 

beginning at 
7:00 pm 

at the 
The Dovetail Centre, Methodist Church, Winchester Road, Chandler's Ford,  

SO53 2GJ 

 
TO: Councillor Pamela Holden-Brown (Chair) 
 Councillor Alan Broadhurst (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Margaret Atkinson Councillor Mrs Haulwen Broadhurst 
Councillor Judith Grajewski Councillor Daniel Hatfield 
Councillor Michael Hughes Councillor David Pragnell 

 
Staff Contacts: Mateusz Dobrowolski,  Democratic Services Officer  

Tel:023 8068 8080;Email: mateusz.dobrowolski@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 Andy Thompson, Area Co-ordinator Tel: 023 8068 8357;  

Email: andy.thompson@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above. 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

 
Eastleigh House 

 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 8)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 2016. 
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
4. Public Participation     
 
5. Chairman's report     
 
6. Area Co-ordinator's Report     
 
7. Presentation on Planning Guidelines     
 
8. Planning Application - 52 Nichol Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh    (Pages 9 - 24)  

  Two storey front, side and rear extensions and new vehicular access from Nichol 
Road (Ref. F/16/78385.) 

  
9. Planning Application - Hiltonbury Farmhouse, North Millers Dale, Chandler's Ford, 

Eastleigh    (Pages 25 - 38)  

 Change of use of open space to private pub garden and provision of external cold-
room, installation of extractor fans and erection of 1.2m high timber palisade fence. 
(Ref. F/16/78284) 

  
10. Planning Application - Hiltonbury Farmhouse, North Millers Dale, Chandler's Ford, 

Eastleigh    (Pages 39 - 48)  

 Listed Building Consent: Change of use of open space to private pub garden and 
provision of external cold-room, installation of extractor fans and erection of 1.2m 
high timber palisade fence (Ref: L/16/78285) 

  
11. Planning Application - Hiltonbury Farmhouse, North Millers Dale, Chandler's Ford, 

Eastleigh    (Pages 49 - 56)  

 Display of 2no. non-illuminated hanging post signs, 1no. non-illuminated free 
standing sign, 2no. externally illuminated wall signs and 1no. non-illuminated wall 
sign (Ref: A/16/78508) 

  
12. Planning Appeals      

 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:- 
 

6 Wellbrooke Gardens, Chandler’s Ford, SO53 1TN - appeal against the 



Council’s refusal of planning permission for change of use of land to private 
garden: Retrospective (amended description) (Ref: F/15/76762.)  
 
Delegated decision 
 
13 Grosvenor Road, Chandler’s Ford – Appeal against a refusal of planning 
permission for felling of 1 no. birch tree to front (Ref: T/15/77691.) 
 
Delegated decision 

 
(b) that the following appeal has been dismissed:- 
 

10A Coultas Road, Chandler’s Ford, Hampshire SO53 5BD - appeal against 
the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for a first floor extension 
(Ref F/15/77352.) 
 
Delegated decision 

  
13. Appointments to Outside Bodies    (Pages 57 - 60)  

 Chandler’s Ford Community Association 
Hiltingbury Community Association 
North Millers Dale Community Association 

  
14. Appointments to Regulatory Panel      

 To appoint a Regulatory Panel to deal with Licensing Issues not covered by the 
Licensing Act 2003 or Gambling Act 2005. In the past, the Committee has 
nominated all Members to serve as a ‘pool’, from which three Members could be 
called upon. 

  
15. Appointments to Eastleigh Borough Council/Test Valley Borough Council Liaison 

Group      

 2015/16 Members: Councillors A Broadhurst and Grajewski 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Wednesday, 14 September 2016 at 7:00 pm 
at The Dovetail Centre, Methodist Church, 

Winchester Road, Chandler's Ford, SO53 2GJ 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 23 March 2016  (7:00 pm – 10:30 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Holden-Brown (Chairman); Councillors A Broadhurst, Atkinson, 
Mrs Broadhurst, Grajewski, M Hughes, Olson and Pragnell 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2016 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Judith Grajewski declared a Personal Interest in agenda item 9, 
Planning Application - The Hilt, Hiltingbury Community Centre, Hiltingbury 
Road, Chandler's Ford, because her husband is a Trustee of Hiltingbury 
Community Association.  
 
Councillor Michael Hughes declared a Personal Interest in agenda item 9, 
Planning Application - The Hilt, Hiltingbury Community Centre, Hiltingbury 
Road, Chandler's Ford, because he is a Trustee of Hiltingbury Community 
Association.  
 
Councillor Pamela Holden-Brown declared a Personal Interest in agenda 
item 9, Planning Application - The Hilt, Hiltingbury Community Centre, 
Hiltingbury Road, Chandler's Ford, because she is a Trustee of Hiltingbury 
Community Association.  
 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr David Sherwood spoke with regard to ‘drive carefully’ street signs at 
either end of Hocombe Road referring to Hocombe as an area.  He had 
expressed his concern when these were first erected some years ago and 
was told it was a mistake however the signs have since been renewed and 
made larger and still refer to the area of ‘Hocombe’.  Mr Sherwood asked 
for an explanation.   

1

Agenda Item 1



2 
 

 
4. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 

 
Referring to a question posed at the previous meeting the Chair advised 
the meeting that Chalvington Road was to be resurfaced from Shaftesbury 
Road to Bournemouth Road.  
 

5. AREA CO-ORDINATOR'S REPORT 
 
The Area Co-ordinator reported on the following items:  
 

 Tesco Community Grant Fund - up to £10,000 for local green spaces. 
With help from the countryside team we submitted an EOI that was 
accepted. The full application had been submitted for funding for 
small improvements to Ramalley Copse and Hiltingbury Lakes. The 
funding focused around the removal of invasive foreign species such 
as laurel, as well as money for path improvements, information 
boards and some seating.  

 
In mid-February the Council was informed that it had been 
unsuccessful. Following obvious disappointment further 
communications took place and the outcome was that there had 
been an offer from Groundwork, the grants administrator, to assist in 
the re-submission for later in the year. Although applications from 
Local Councils were allowed, if a re-submission was unsuccessful 
the Council might look to apply via local community groups.  
 

 Cuckoo Bushes Meadow - Another recent development had been the 
proposal to improve this area. Following work by the Countryside 
team, a report requesting Developer contributions for the agreed 
proposals was to be presented later in the meeting. 
 

 Hiltingbury Pavilion Development project - working closely with the 
Parish Council a project brief had been created.  The next stage 
would be to complete an initiation document that would lead to the 
appointment of a consultant design team to create feasibility designs 
and costings.  

 

 Anti Social Behaviour - Continued liaison with the Councils 
Community Safety Team had continued following a spate of incidents 
at Fryern Arcade during the day. Some concerns had also been 
raised regarding a homeless man who had been sleeping rough at 
this location. The Community Safety team were dealing with this via a 
multi-agency approach. Although the incidents had been minor and in 
some cases not technically law breaking, many residents had felt 
intimidated and uneasy in the vicinity.  It was worth noting however, 
that an increasing number of people through social media channels 
and direct emails had empathised with the homeless man and asked 
people not to be judgemental.  A signal of a very caring community. 

 

2



3 
 

 Other work had included: co-ordinating responses on the Parkside 
GP surgery proposals and gaining a better understanding of the 
implications for local residents, reforming the Chandler’s Ford and 
Hiltingbury  community Grants; continued liaison with Test Valley via 
the Test Valley and Eastleigh Borough Council Liaison Group; 
chasing the County Council to fix the railings outside the Half Way 
Inn; and various resident queries and issues, the frequent and 
notable problem of parking on verges. 

 

 Forthcoming priorities would be centred around the Hiltingbury 
Pavilion and to revisit priorities with the Local Area Committee for 
Developer Contributions to be allocated to community projects. 

 
6. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 

 
Development Management staff gave a short presentation on guidelines 
that had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; 
in particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  
This was set against the broader policy framework. 
 

7. PLANNING APPLICATION - 133 HILTINGBURY ROAD, CHANDLER'S 
FORD 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 8) concerning an application for a two storey 
side and rear addition to provide 5no. one bedroom and 1no. two bedroom 
flats with associated amenity space, parking, bin and cycle storage (Ref: 
F/15/77387) 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be GRANTED subject to the following amended 
conditions: 
 
1) The existing hedge along the northern boundary of the site with 

Hiltingbury Road shall be retained at a height of no less than 
1.8m. Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the 
locality; 

 
2) No construction or demolition work shall take place during the 

construction period except between the hours of 0800 to 1800 
Mondays to Fridays or 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all 
on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Reason: To protect the amenities 
of the occupiers of nearby dwellings; 

 
3) During the period of demolition and construction, no deliveries 

to the site shall be made prior to 0915 or between the hours of 
1445 to 1600 Mondays to Fridays; outside of the hours of 0900 
to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays. Reason: In the interests of highway safety and 
neighbouring amenity;  

3



4 
 

 
4) The following Note to Applicant: Should any damage be caused 

to highway verges during the undertaking of the development 
hereby permitted, the verge should be reinstated to its former 
condition; and    

 
5) the recommended conditions and reasons. 
 

8. PLANNING APPLICATION - THE HILT, HILTINGBURY COMMUNITY 
CENTRE, HILTINGBURY ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 9) concerning an application for the enclosure 
of and alterations to the veranda to the western elevation to allow for 
ground floor extension. (Ref. F/16/77780). 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be GRANTED subject to the following: 
 
1) additional condition; During the period of demolition and 

construction, no deliveries to the site shall be made prior to 
0915 or between the hours of 1445 to 1600 Mondays to Fridays; 
outside of the hours of 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all 
on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Reason: In the interests of 
highway safety and neighbouring amenity; and  

 
2)  the recommended conditions and reasons. 
 
(NOTES: (i) Councillors Holden-Brown and Hughes declared a personal 
interest in this item as trustees of the Association; (ii) Councillor Grajewski 
as her husband is a trustee; and (iii) Councillor Broadhurst took the Chair 
for this item only.) 
 

9. PLANNING APPLICATION - 6 HOCOMBE PARK CLOSE, CHANDLER'S 
FORD 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 10) concerning an application for  a single and 
a two storey rear extension with side facing dormer window & inverted 
balcony, hip to gable enlargement to front elevation, first floor side 
extension with front facing dormer and alterations to fenestration at ground 
& first floor levels within main dwelling (Ref. F/16/77802). 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be GRANTED subject to the following 
amended/additional conditions:  
 
1) Prior to the development hereby permitted being brought into 

use one house sparrow nesting box and three bat boxes, bricks 

4



5 
 

or tubs should be provided on the proposed extensions. Bat 
boxes should be positioned to ensure that roosting is available 
at different times of the day and different seasons. These shall 
thereafter be retained. Reason: To ensure the site is enhanced 
for birds and bats; 

 
2) No construction, demolition or deliveries to the site shall take 

place during the construction period except between the hours 
of 0800 to 1800 Mondays to Fridays or 0900 to 1300 on 
Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Reason: 
To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings; 
and  

 
3) The recommended conditions and reasons. 
 

10. PLANNING APPLICATION - 100 CHALVINGTON ROAD, CHANDLER'S 
FORD 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 11) concerning an application for  cutting back 
of overhanging branches to boundary on an annual basis to 1no. Scots 
Pine (Ref. T/16/77811). 
 
The Committee was advised that the objector noted in the report lives at 
98a and not 102 Chalvington Road as stated in the report.  
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be  GRANTED subject to the recommended 
conditions and reasons. 
 

11. ALLOCATION OF DEVELOPERS' CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Consideration was given to a joint report of the Head of Transportation and 
Engineering with the Head of Development Management and the Chief 
Financial Officer (Agenda item 12) which highlighted that following the 
approval and prioritisation of local highway priorities that had been 
previously agreed by this Committee and Member consultation at the 
Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee Members’ 
Meetings, The Head of Transportation & Engineering and the Head of 
Development Management, in consultation with County officers, had 
matched Developers’ Contributions with local transport schemes.  
 
These contributions consisted of those currently unallocated; residual 
amounts remaining from completed schemes; and the reallocation of 
contributions allocated to schemes found to be unfeasible at this stage. 
 
Once all or part of the funding was identified, priority transport schemes 
could be progressed to feasibility and costed.  Implementation would 
depend on successful detailed design and assembling sufficient capital 
contributions either from Eastleigh Borough Council or Hampshire County 

5



6 
 

Council receipts and when schemes were below £25,000 in value they 
would proceed using delegated powers. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the allocation of Developers’ Contributions held within this 
Committee’s Community Investment Programme (CIP) for feasibility 
and implementation of prioritised transport schemes be approved, as 
listed in Appendix 1 to the report. 
 

12. VALLEY PARK AND SURROUNDING AREA - TRAFFIC REGULATION 
ORDERS - OBJECTION REPORT 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Transportation and 
Engineering (Agenda item 13) which proposed revocation of a Prohibition 
of Driving Order in Velmore Road that had been advertised along with 
proposed waiting restrictions in various roads within Valley Park and 
surrounding roads in Chandler’s Ford.   

During the advertisement of the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders 61 
representations were received, 28 of which were objecting to the 
proposals.  In addition there was an objection from Hampshire 
Constabulary.  This had subsequently been retracted subject to an 
agreement that the existing Prohibition of Driving Orders in Eastleigh be 
reviewed with a view to them being revoked.  The report summarised the 
representations received and recommended how to proceed with the 
proposals. 

 

RESOLVED –  

(1) That the proposed waiting restrictions in Castle Lane are 
implemented but amended as follows:  

a. That the proposed extension of the no waiting at any 
time restriction at its junction with Bournemouth road be 
omitted from the order; 

b. That the decision not to implement the proposed No 
Waiting At Any Time between the Borough boundary and 
no 22 on the south side and 37 on the north side be 
reduced to a No Waiting Mon to Fri 10-11 and 2-3pm 
restriction be delegated to the Head of Transportation 
and Engineering subject to consideration of further 
comments to be sought; 

c. That the No Waiting Monday to Friday outside numbers 
2, 4, and  6  be advertised in the next Traffic Regulation 
Order to be undertaken in the area 

(2) That the proposed waiting restrictions in Conway Close, 
Donnington Drive, Guildford Drive, Montgomery Way be 
implemented as advertised and amended as follows: 

a. That the decision to implement the proposed double 

6



7 
 

yellow lines on Montgomery way from a point 10metres 
North of its junction with Donnington drive northwards 
to be reduced to a No Waiting Monday to Friday 
restriction be delegated to the Head of Transportation 
and Engineering subject to  consideration of further 
comments to be sought, (except for a section in Conway 
Close where a disabled persons parking bay is to be 
provided);  

(3) That the proposed waiting restrictions in Velmore Road be 
implemented with the restricted waiting being limited to 2 - 3 
pm only;  

(4) That the Prohibition of Driving Order in Velmore Road not  be 
revoked as advertised; and 

(5) That the existing Prohibition of Driving Orders are reviewed in 
next years’ Traffic Management programme. 

(NOTE: Test Valley Borough Councillor Kath Tilling, and eight members of 
the public spoke with regard to the report, and the Area Co-ordinator read 
out representations from two further members of the public, issues raised 
included concerns about corporate parking in front of residents’ houses, 
cars blocking driveways, refuse vehicles having to mount the pavement to 
gain access, large vehicles having to reverse out of roads, inaccessibility 
for home delivery vehicles, inaccessibility for contractors parking when 
making house calls, speed on the hill in Castle Lane, and lack of police 
enforcement of the Prohibition of Driving orders.)  

 
13. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 2016/17 

 
Consideration was given to a report of the Area Co-ordinator (Agenda item 
14) which recommended utilisation of developer’s contributions for 
improvement work to Cuckoo Bushes Meadow. 
 
RESOLVED –  

That contributions be allocated to the scheme detailed in paragraph 6 
and 7 of the report.  

 
14. COMMUNITY GRANTS 2016/17 

 
Consideration was given to a report of the Area Co-ordinator (Agenda item 
15) which recommended that all the received grant applications for 
2016/17 be rejected. The report also recommended that an adapted set of 
grant conditions specifically for Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury were 
adopted, enabling an all year round application process with a tightening 
of some financial conditions.  If agreed, the report would also encourage 
all applicants to resubmit their applications based on the new conditions. 
 
Members requested minor changes to the Appendices to the report.   
 

7



8 
 

RESOLVED –  
 
1) That community grant applications totalling £3400 from the 

eight local community groups in the Chandler’s Ford and 
Hiltingbury Local Area be rejected; 

 
2) That the new grant conditions specifically for Chandler’s Ford 
and Hiltingbury be adopted;  
 
3) That community groups in Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury be 

invited to reapply for the community grant, based on the new 
grant conditions.  

 
4) That minor changes to the wording of the guidance notes be 

included as follows:  
 

 the Section ‘Who Can Apply’ bullet point 2 be changed to 
read “seek to improve the quality of life of local people, 
(those residents in the Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury 
Local Area)”  

 Bullet point 3 amended to read “Operate entirely or partly 
for the benefit of local people; 

 That paragraph ‘How Much are the Grants’ sentence two 
to read ‘Organisations should be mindful not to apply for 
grants if they hold more than one year’s running costs 
within their reserves unless for a major project which 
cannot be funded from running cost reserves.’; and  

 Bullet point 9 of appendix 1 be amended to read “can 
provide its most recent approved and signed accounts, or 
in the case of a new enterprise where accounts are not 
available they provide evidence of their bona fides.’ 

 
15. PLANNING APPEALS 

 
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services reported that the following 
appeal had been dismissed:- 
 
20 Park Road, Chandler’s Ford – appeal against refusal of consent to 
demolish existing bungalow and erection of replacement 2 storey dwelling.  
(Ref: F/15/76236) Previously delegated decision.  
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
M5485 
 
 

8



 

 

 
 
 
CHANDLER'S FORD & HILTINGBURY Wednesday 06 July 2016 Case Officer Rosie Rivers 

 
 
SITE: 52 Nichol Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5AW 
 
 Ref. F/16/78385 Received: 15/04/2016     (10/06/2016) 
 
 
APPLICANT: Ms J Hurst 

 
PROPOSAL: Two storey front, side & rear extensions & new vehicular 

access from Nichol Road 
  
AMENDMENTS:  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
PERMIT 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
(1)  The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the 

following plans numbered:02_ Rev I, 03_, 04_ Rev A, 05_, NCRDRPA-JUN14, 
NCRDSH-JUN14, NCRDTR-JUN14, DTRP-JUL14. Reason: For the avoidance 
of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  
(2)  The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the 

date of this decision.   Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 

  
(3)  Notwithstanding the approved details no development shall start until details and 

samples of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces 
of the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.  
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the 
amenities of the area. 

  
(4)  The first floor window/rooflights on the north elevation shall either be:  a) 

obscure glazed to Pilkingtons level 3 or equivalent with no more than a top-hung 
opening toplight: OR  b) positioned at least 1.7 metres above the floor of the 

9

Agenda Item 8



 

 

room in which they are installed.  Once installed the windows shall be 
permanently maintained in that condition.  Reason: To protect the amenity and 
privacy of the adjoining residential properties. 

  
(5)  The development must accord with the Arboricultural Impact Appraisal and 

Method Statement produced by B. J. Unwin Forestry Consultancy dated 28th 
July 2014  and the Tree Retention and Protection Plan (Dwg No: NCRDTRP-
JUL14). Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an 
important part of the amenity of the locality. 

  
(6)  No development, or site preparation prior to operations which has any effect on 

compacting, disturbing or altering the levels of the site, shall take place until a 
person qualified in arboriculture, and approved by the Local Planning Authority, 
has been appointed to supervise construction activity occurring on the site. The 
Arboricultural Supervisor will be responsible for the implementation of protective 
measures, special surfacing and all works deemed necessary to ensure 
compliance with the approved Arboricultural Method Statement. Where a cellular 
confinement system is specified to protect root protection areas the 
arboricultural supervisor shall ensure that this is installed prior to any vehicle 
movement, earth moving or construction activity occurring on the site and that all 
such measures to protect trees are inspected by the Local Planning Authority 
Arboricultural Officer prior to commencement of any vehicle movements/use of 
the proposed drive. 
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part of 
the amenity of the locality. 

  
(7)  Before any equipment, materials or machinery are brought onto the site for the 

purposes of development, a pre-commencement site meeting between the Tree 
Officer, Arboricultural Supervisor and Site Manager shall take place to confirm 
the protection of trees on and adjacent to the site in accordance with 
Arboricultural Impact Appraisal and Method Statement produced by B. J. Unwin 
Forestry Consultancy dated 28th July 2014 and the Tree  Retention and 
Protection Plan (Dwg No: NCRDTRP-JUL14) The tree protection shall be 
positioned as shown on the Tree Protection Plan, before any equipment, 
materials or machinery are brought onto the site for the purposes of the 
development. The tree protection shall be retained until the development is 
completed and nothing shall be placed within the fencing, nor shall any ground 
levels be altered or excavations made without the written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority. This condition shall not be discharged until an arboricultural 
supervision statement, the contents of which are to be discussed and agreed at 
the pre-commencement meeting, is submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority on completion of development. 
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part of 
the amenity of the locality. 

  
(8)  The local planning authority's arboricultural officer shall be notified at least 7 

days prior to the installation of the approved cellular confinement system so that 
arrangements can be made for him to monitor the laying of the cellular 
confinement system.  Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which 
form an important part of the amenity of the locality. 

10



 

 

  
(9)  The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the parking area 

[including the garage] has been provided in accordance with the approved plans 
and thereafter permanently retained and used only for the purpose of 
accommodating private motor vehicles incidental to the enjoyment of the 
dwelling house as a residence.   Reason: To make provision for off street 
parking for the purpose of highway safety. 

  
(10) No construction, demolition or deliveries to the site shall take place during the 

construction period except between the hours of 0800 to 1800 Mondays to 
Fridays or 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays.   Reason:  To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby 
dwellings. 

  
(11) No construction or demolition work shall start until a Method Statement has 

been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. 
Demolition and construction work shall only take place in accordance with the 
approved method statement which shall include:   
a)  measures to control the emission of dust and dirt generated by demolition 
and construction works, including measures to prevent mud on the highway;    
b) a scheme for controlling noise and vibration from demolition and construction 
activities, including details of any piling;  
c) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works, 
loading/ unloading of plant & materials and  restoration of any damage to the 
highway, including vehicle crossovers and grass verges. 
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the amenity of the locality 

  
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a 
timely manner. 

  
 

 
 
Report: 

 
This application has been referred to Committee because of the previous 
planning history of the application site.  

 
Description of Application 

 
1. The application proposes two storey front, side and rear extensions, allowing 

for a complete internal rearrangement and provision of four bedrooms at first 
floor, one with an en-suite and a master bedroom with an en-suite and 
dressing. At ground floor the scheme provides for a vaulted entrance hall, 
lounge, open plan kitchen/dining/family room and separate utility and w.c. 

 

11



 

 

2. The two storey front gable extensions form a three gable front, the side gable 
facing Randall Road would be set back from the front of the dwelling by 4.2m. 
A two storey side and rear extension, with a fully hipped roof. Two dormer 
windows are proposed in the side elevation facing Randall Road. To the rear, 
the two storey extension on the northern side extends a further 1.2m from the 
existing single storey extension, with a twin gable design. Towards the 
southern side of the property, the projection varies from 4.2m to 5m deep. 

 
Site Characteristics 

 
3. The existing dwelling is a modest, detached bungalow with front and rear flat 

roof dormer windows and a single storey flat roof extension to the rear. It sits 
within a corner plot, approximately 1100sqm, with the dwelling orientated 
towards Nichol Road. Side access is currently provided from Randall Road, 
with a detached single garage close to the access and the rear garden 
towards 2 Randall Road. 

 
4. The frontage of the property is partly open to Nichol Road, with vegetation 

planted partly along the front of the site. The side boundary to Randall Road 
comprises a 1.8m close boarded fence and vegetation planted in front of the 
fencing. There is an open side access to the rear garden and hedging along 
the remainder of the boundary. Close boarded fencing is positioned along the 
boundary between no.52 and 54. 

 
5. There are protected trees in the front and rear garden. The site is covered by 

blanket and individual TPOs. 
 

6. The residential area in general has an attractive, well treed character, with 
buildings generally set back to provide front gardens and parking areas. The 
buildings are typically substantial detached dwellings, one and two stories 
with varied design. Plot size and building line is generally consistent, with the 
two corner properties no. 50 and 52 being set slightly further back that the 
other dwellings in the street. These corner properties have some similar 
design features, but are orientated differently and occupy a different footprint. 

 
7. There have been a number of recent developments in Nichol Road, where 

smaller properties have been substantially extended or replaced with larger, 
more contemporary homes.   
 

Relevant Planning History 
 

8. F/14/75116: Two storey front, side and rear extension with new vehicular 
access from Nichol Road. Refused 03/12/2014, Appeal dismissed 09/04/2015 

 
9. T/14/74745: Reduce lowest limb by 2m to 1no. Sweet Chestnut, crown lift to 

6.5m, remove epicormic growth to upper crowns, remove immature co-
dominate stem at base of 2nd tree in group, crown clean to Group Sweet 
Chestnuts, crown lift to 6.5m, reshape and prune to 1no. False Acacia. Part 
consented part refused 05/09/2014  

 

12



 

 

10. F/14/74412: Two storey front, side and rear extension with new vehicular 
access from Nichol Road. Refused 17/06/2014 

 
11. T/14/74224: Crown lift to 6.5m 1no. Sweet Chestnut (T7) and 1no. Oak (T10), 

reduce laterals to 5no. Sweet chestnuts (G2) to give 1.5m clearance from the 
underlying garage and fell 1no. Acacia (1) and 1no. Sycamore (2). Part 
consented, part refused 16/05/2014 

 
12. Z/06707/003/00: Ground floor rear extension. Granted 12/05/1978 

 
Representations Received 

 
13. This application has generated a number of representations, both for and 

against the proposal. 
 

14. 13 letters of support on the following grounds: 

 Similar developments in the area 

 Plot can accommodate development  

 Improvement to current dwelling and local area 

 Nichol Road is on need of modernisation 

 Enhance corner of Nichol and Randall Road  

 In keeping with the surrounding properties 
 

15. 19 letters of objection on the following grounds: 

 Harmful affected on the character and appearance of the area 

 Most corner plots contain smaller properties set back from the building 
lines 

 Application is similar to previously refused application 

 Visually obtrusive 

 New access will create a traffic hazard 

 Impact on the living conditions of no.54 

 Impact on trees 

 Other corner plots will be subject to purchase and property development 

 Too large for corner plot 

 Impact on openness of corner plot, all corner plots are set back from the 
corner 

 Impact on building line of Randall Road 

 Application is for demolish and rebuild rather than extensions 

 Over development 

 Out of keeping with the area 

 Precedent for future development 

 Slate roof out of keeping 

 The siting of the dwelling will have a dominating and unacceptable 
overbearing effect because of its scale and bulk 

 Contrary to policy 59.BE, DM1 and Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury 
Character Area 

 
16. A detailed letter of objection has been received from the residents of 54 

Nichol Road. In summary these objections are: 

13



 

 

 Impact of the proposal on residential amenity because of overlooking, 
overshadowing, reduced sunlight, privacy and general loss of outlook 

 Overbearing 

 Visually intrusive 

 Effect on the character and appearance of the area 

 Disproportionate extensions 

 Excessive size house in relation to available plot size ratio 

 Impact on trees 

 Highway safety 

 Not overcome previous reasons for refusal or appeal decision 

 Violates property deeds 

 Request conditions in relation to sewers, phone lines and working hours 
 

Consultation Responses 
 

17. Tree Services Manager: No objection subject to conditions. 
 

18. Head of Transportation and Engineering: No objection, subject to 
conditions – The proposal provides adequate parking for the dwelling, as 
specified in the EBC parking standards, accessed via the existing side 
entrance taken from Randall Road, along with a new vehicle access point 
taken from Nichol Road, which in itself is acceptable, being in excess of the 
required 10m from the junction, on what is a road with relatively low traffic 
flows. 
 

19. Chandler’s Ford Parish Council: The Parish Council raise no objection as 
the issues with the previous application have been addressed.  

 
Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site 

 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 

 Within Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Character Area (Hiltingbury Road 
West) 

 
Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 

 

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved Policies: 59.BE & 
104.T 

 

 Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014 Policies: 
DM1 & DM24 

 
20. The Submitted Local Plan comprises: the Revised Pre-submission Eastleigh 

Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, published February 2014; and the Schedule 
of Proposed Minor Changes, submitted to the Secretary of State in July 2014. 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents 

 

14



 

 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 2011) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 
(January 2009) 

 Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury Character Area Appraisal 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 

21. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that applications for 
planning permission must be determined in accordance with the development 
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  

 
22. Para 14 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development 

and states that development proposals which accord with the development 
plan should be approved without delay. Where the development plan is 
absent, silent, or relevant policies are out-of-date planning permission should 
be granted unless the adverse impacts of the development would outweigh 
the benefits; or specific policies in the Framework indicate development 
should be restricted (paragraph 14). Local plan policies that do not accord 
with the NPPF are now deemed to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF requires that 
due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to 
their degree of consistency with the NPPF. In other words the closer the 
policies in the plan accord to the policies in the Framework, the greater the 
weight that may be given. 

 
23. Paragraph 56 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that “The 

Government attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. 
Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from 
good planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for 
people.”  

 
24. Paragraph 64 states that “Permission should be refused for development of 

poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the 
character and quality of an area and the way it functions.” 
 

Policy Commentary 
 

25. The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria against which 
this application will be assessed. 

 
Comment on Consultation Responses and Representations Received 

 
26. A number of letters of representation have been received from the 

neighbouring properties. The concerns raised have been addressed in the 
report. Comments have been received regarding the proposal setting a 
precedent for other development in the area. Each application is assessed on 
its own merits and it is therefore considered that the proposal would not set a 
precedent for future development. 

 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 

15



 

 

 
27. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:- 

a. "If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of 
any determination to be made under the planning Acts the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise." 

28. In this case policy issues for consideration include: 

 
Principle 

 
29. The development site falls within the built urban edge, as part of an 

established residential area. The principle of development is considered to be 
acceptable subject to the proposed scheme being appropriate in nature, 
design and siting, in accordance with the relevant local planning policies and 
guidance. 

 
30. In this case the relevant saved local plan policies are 59.BE and 104.T. 

 
31. Saved Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full and 

proper account of the context of the site including the character and 
appearance of the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, 
layout, design and siting. It also requires a high standard of landscape design, 
a satisfactory means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclists and 
neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook, and 
noise and fumes. Policy 104.T requires adequate off-highway parking to be 
provided. 

 
32. Also relevant to this application, is the Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury 

Character Area SPD, of which this application falls within Hiltingbury Road 
West. 

 
33. The guidance contained within this area states that proposals should ensure 

that: 
 

a. sufficient garden depth and area is retained by existing or replacement 
dwellings, commensurate with their size and character, which can 
accommodate appropriate tree planting in keeping with the character of 
existing plots.  

b. no healthy mature trees would be felled or likely to be damaged  
c. the design of any new building work, including extensions, is 

compatible with the character of adjacent good quality properties and 
fits well into the overall street-scene  

d. the existing building line along street frontages is respected  
 

Planning History 
 

34. The planning history of this site is also of relevance. Application F/14/74412 
for extensions to the dwelling was refused in June 2014 under delegated 
powers for the following reasons: 

16



 

 

 
“No arboricultural information has been submitted to allow an assessment of 
the impact of the proposed works on protected trees. The scheme therefore 
fails to take proper account of the context of the site, in accordance with 
saved policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 
and emerging policy DM1 of the Revised Pre-submission Eastleigh Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029.” 
 
“The proposed scheme, by reason of the design, height, depth and mass, 
would result in a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of the adjoining 
property, no.54 Nichol Road, contrary to saved policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011.” 
 

35. A further application was submitted under application F/14/75116 for 
extensions to the dwelling. This application sought to address the reasons for 
refusal and was accompanied by arboricultural information and a daylight and 
sunlight assessment. The application was refused in December 2014 at the 
Local Area Committee and subsequently dismissed at appeal. The application 
was refused for the following reasons: 

 
“The proposed extended dwelling would result in an overdevelopment of the 
application site by reason of its scale, height, depth and mass located on an 
open corner position, having a detrimental impact on the character and 
appearance of the locality. As such the proposal is contrary to Saved Policy 
59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review [2001-2011], emerging 
policy DM1 of the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 
2014, the Submitted Local Plan and the Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury 
Character Area, Adopted January 2005.” 

 
“The proposed development, by reason of the design, scale, height, depth 
and mass would result in a detrimental impact on the amenity of the adjoining 
property, no. 54 Nichol Road, contrary to Saved Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan Review [2001-2011]; emerging policy DM1 of the 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014, the Submitted 
Local Plan and Quality Places Supplementary Planning Document, Adopted 
November 2011.” 

 
36. The refused application and appeal decision is a highly material consideration 

in the assessment of the current application. The current application has 
sought to address the reasons for refusal through amendments to the scheme 
and an additional letter from CHP Surveyors Limited who carried out the 
submitted daylight and sunlight report. 

 
37. The following amendments have been made to the current application: 

 The gable roof on the side elevations has been removed and the roof is 
now fully hipped; 

 The width of the resulting dwelling has been reduced by 1.6m and 3.6m at 
the front corner. The proposal would now maintain a separation to the side 
boundary facing Randall Road of 4.9m (previously 3.3m) at a minimum 
increasing to 5.4m (previously 3.8m) at a maximum; 

17



 

 

 The proposed side gable and chimney have been removed from the 
proposal and two dormer windows are proposed in the south side 
elevation; 

 Rear extension has been reduced in depth by 1m; and 

 The main front gable has been increased in depth by 1.4m. 
 

Character and Appearance 
 

38. The size, scale and design of the dwellings in Nichol Road are varied. It is 
noted that there are a number of large dwellings within the existing street 
scene. The current dwelling is orientated towards Nichol Road and is set back 
from the building line of 54 and 56 Nichol Road. 
 

39. The extensions would result in the dwelling being positioned 4.4m (5m 
including the canopy area) closer to Nichol Road. The proposed extensions 
would be staggered back into the site and the northern corner of the dwelling 
would not be extended further forward than the existing dwelling on the site. 
 

40. The proposed extensions to the front of the property are considered to be 
acceptable in terms of their form, size and scale. The roof of the proposed 
extensions would be fully hipped which is considered to reduce the bulk of the 
additions to the dwelling and the resultant property when viewed from Nichol 
Road is considered to be modest in size and scale. 
 

41. Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposed extensions would result in the 
development further forward than the existing front of the property, a large 
garden and access drive would be maintained at the front of the property. In 
addition the proposed dwelling would remain set back from the building line of 
54 and 56 Nichol Road.  The proposed extensions are therefore not 
considered to result in an intrusive feature in the street and would not impact 
on the street scene when viewed from Nichol Road. 
 

42. In relation to Randall Road, the Planning Inspector considered that the corner 
properties have a generous distance between their respective elevations and 
the inner edge of the pavements in Randall Road, which is the highway 
boundary. 
 

43. The proposed extension would be positioned 1.4m closer to the boundary 
than the existing dwelling on the site. The length of the dwelling would be 
increased when viewed from Randall Road. The element of the extension, 
extending towards Randall Road would have a width of 10.4m in comparison 
to the existing 6m dwelling. However, the roof of the extension would be fully 
hipped with a low eaves level in comparison to the existing gabled roof 
property. Therefore whilst it is acknowledged that the depth of the extension 
would be larger than the existing dwelling on the site, the proposed extension 
would have a low eaves level, similar to a single storey extension and would 
fully hip away from the boundary of the site adjoining Randall Road. It is 
considered that these amendments in comparison to the previously refused 
scheme would reduce the bulk of the proposed extension.  
 

18



 

 

44. The Inspector considered in his report: 
 

“the appeal proposal would result in the most forward section of the southern 
flank of the existing building increasing from its present 6m to 11m and 
encroaching 3m southwards to be within 3.5m of the boundary with Randall 
Road. Furthermore, with the proposed steep roof pitch, all of that elevation’s 
11m would be perceived as representing the maximum height of the building. 
When it is read with the projection of the side gable at the same height I 
consider that views in both directions along Randall Road the bulk and scale 
of the building would be visually obtrusive and a jarring feature. 
 

This would be at odds with the openness on the opposite side of the road and 
the generous front building line of the houses further along Randall Road, 
even allowing for the fact that intervening trees tend to prevent the appeal 
property being read with those properties. Moreover, when this side and rear 
extension is taken together with the proposed 4.5m depth front extension, the 
overall openness of the corner would be compromised”. 
 

45. The application has been amended from the previously refused scheme. The 
proposed side extension has been set back from the side boundary by 1.6m 
from the previously refused scheme and would now maintain a separation of 
4.9m to the boundary of the site, increasing to 5.4m. In addition the side 
extension has been staggered so that the front corner of the dwelling would 
maintain a separation distance of 6.5m increasing to 6.9m on the corner of the 
site. In addition the proposed gable and chimney have been removed from the 
side elevation and two dormer windows are proposed in the side elevation. 
 

46. It is considered that having regard to the staggered nature of the side 
extension, with the front and side elevation set in further to maintain the 
openness of the corner and the removal of the side gable and chimney the 
proposal has overcome the concerns raised by the Planning Inspector and 
would not result in a visually obtrusive and jarring feature. 
 

47. Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposed extension would increase the 
depth of the dwelling when viewed from Randall Road, it is considered that 
due to the staggered nature of the proposed extensions, the maintained 
openness of the corner of the plot and the removal of the side gable and 
chimney, the proposed extension would not cause material harm to the 
character of the surrounding area. The proposal is therefore considered to 
comply with Policy 59.BE of the saved Local Plan and have overcome the 
reason for refusal and appeal decision. 
 

48. Additional concerns have been raised by the neighbouring properties that the 
proposal would result in overdevelopment of the site and insufficient amenity 
space would be maintained. These concerns were not raised by the Planning 
Inspector. The proposal is considered to retain a good sized garden, in 
accordance with the guidance set out in the ‘Quality Places’ SPD, in addition 
space is maintained to the front side and rear boundaries of the plot and 
therefore the proposal is not considered to result in overdevelopment of the 
plot. 

19



 

 

 

49. Concerns have been raised by the neighbouring properties regarding the 
details of the proposed materials. If permission is to be granted, conditions 
can be recommended for the submission of materials to ensure that 
appropriate materials are used in the development. 

 
Residential amenity 

 
50. The application was dismissed by the Planning Inspector as it was concluded 

that the appellant had not established with adequate certainty that the 
proposed extension would not have an unacceptable effect on the living 
conditions for the occupiers of No.54 as regards daylight, sunlight and 
outlook. 

 
51. The Inspectors report considered: 

 
“From my visit to no.54 I consider that there is reasonable doubt that the 
findings fully take account the actual effect of the proposed extension on the 
daylight and sunlight currently enjoyed in the kitchen/diner of the house. In 
addition I am not entirely satisfied that the officers’ report had given sufficient 
weight to the effect of the extension’s roof on the outlook from no.54”. 

 
52. The existing dwelling when viewed from no.54 has a central gabled roof with 

dormer windows and a single storey flat roof extension to the rear. The 
previously refused application (F/14/75116) maintained this gable and 
extended the dwelling to the front and rear. The current application has been 
amended by removing this gabled roof and fully hipping the roof of the 
dwelling when viewed from the neighbouring property. The proposed 
extension has also been reduced in depth by 1m in comparison to the 
previous application. 

 
53. The residents at the neighbouring property no.54 consider that the proposed 

rear extension would result in a visually intrusive feature which would be 
overbearing on their property. Whilst the extension would be visible from their 
property, where at present there is openness, the fact that the development 
could be seen would not necessarily mean it would be overbearing.   

 
54. The proposed extension when viewed from the neighbouring property would 

have an eaves height of 2.2m with the roof fully hipping away from the 
neighbouring property. The proposed extension would maintain a separation 
distance of 1.5m at a minimum to the boundary with No.54. 

 
55. Views of the rear extension would be possible from the rear facing windows at 

54 Nichol Road, where at present the occupiers enjoy views of open sky and 
trees. However, the loss of view is not a material planning consideration. 

 
56. It is considered that due to the low eaves level of 2.2m, with the roof fully 

hipping away from the neighbouring property and the separation distance 
maintained to the boundary the proposed extension would not cause material 

20



 

 

harm to the amenities of the neighbouring property in terms of over 
dominance.  

 
57. The neighbouring property no.54 has also raised concerns regarding loss of 

sunlight and daylight. Details regarding loss of sunlight and daylight have 
been detailed in the neighbouring properties objection letter. The residents of 
the neighbouring property consider that no reduction in sunlight or daylight is 
acceptable. 

 
58. The neighbouring property has a conservatory to the rear of the dwelling, and 

a garage positioned between the application site and the conservatory. In 
accordance with the Quality Places SPD, the 45 degree test for extensions 
has been carried out. The proposal fully complies with this test and therefore 
the proposal is not considered to cause material harm in terms of loss of light 
to these windows.  

 
59. In considering the 25 degree test which relates to light to windows facing the 

proposed development, the only relevant window facing the proposed 
extension is the conservatory window which serves the dining area of the 
kitchen. The first floor side facing window does not serve a bedroom and is 
therefore not analysed. If an obstructing building creates an angle greater 
than 25 degrees from the horizontal, measured from the centre of the lowest 
window, then a more detailed light check is required. In using the 25 degree 
test, due to the reduction in the gable to side of the property, the proposal 
would comply with the 25 degree test. 

 
60. The applicant has submitted a daylight and sunlight report. The assessment 

has been carried out in accordance with the BRE Guidelines. The assessment 
is based on the larger development submitted under application (F/14/75116). 
The report concludes that the windows within the neighbouring property 54 
Nichol Road will enjoy good daylight following the implementation of the 
proposals, with the windows they serve enjoying good daylight distribution. 
The sunlight analysis demonstrated that the windows within 54 Nichol Road 
will achieve the numerical values set out with the BRE Guidelines. An 
additional letter regarding the daylight and sunlight report from the surveyors 
has been submitted with the current application. The report states in relation 
to the impact of the proposal on the conservatory that: “Our analysis has 
considered both the VSC to each window to the conservatory, as well as the 
area of the kitchen/dining room which will be in from of the No Sky Line and in 
all instances the numerical values contained within the BRE Guidelines are 
exceeded.” 

 
61. The additional letter confirms that the proposal complies with the BRE 

Guidelines. 
 

62. The application proposes four roof lights in the side elevation facing no.54. 
Two of the roof lights would serve a dressing room and a secondary window 
to a bedroom, these windows are positioned at a high level, above 1.7m and 
would therefore not result in material overlooking to the neighbouring 
property.  

21



 

 

 
63. Two roof lights are also proposed in the side elevation serving a bedroom. 

Whilst it is acknowledged that these windows are located in a similar location 
to the existing side facing window on the side, it is considered that as they are 
new roof lights and positioned in a slightly different location to the existing 
window on the site, a condition is recommended to obscure glaze these 
windows to prevent overlooking to the neighbouring property. 

 
64. New windows are proposed in the first floor rear elevation. This is an 

established residential area and some degree of overlooking is expected in 
such areas. The closest windows would serve a bathroom room area and due 
to the position of the bedroom window it is considered that views to the 
neighbouring property would be towards the rear of the garden and would not 
provide views towards the main private amenity space in the garden. The 
proposal is therefore not considered to result in material over looking to the 
neighbouring property no.54. 

 
Trees  

 
65. Concerns have been raised by objectors with regards to the impact on 

protected trees. A tree survey has been submitted with the application. The 
Council’s Tree Services Manager has reviewed the submitted information and 
has noted that the survey has not been updated but has confirmed that the 
survey is still valid. 

 
66. The Tree Services Manager has raised no objection to the application subject 

to conditions. Conditions are recommended in relation to compliance with the 
submitted appraisal and method statement, supervision of works, a pre-
commencement meeting with the Council’s Tree Officer and notification of the 
installation of the instalment of the cellular confinement system. 

 
67. The conditions should ensure the significant trees are protected from the 

proposed development and therefore no objection is raised on these grounds.  
 

Access  
 
68. Following consultation with the Council’s Head of Transportation and 

Engineering no objection has been raised to the application. It is considered 
that the proposal will provide sufficient parking on the site and the vehicle 
access is acceptable. Therefore no objections are raised on these grounds, a 
condition in relation to the drive is recommended. 

 
Property Covenants 

 
69. The residents at 54 Nichol Road have indicated that this scheme is contrary to 

restrictions and obligations (covenants) set out in the deeds to these 
properties. The presence of covenants is not a material planning 
consideration and cannot be taken into account when determining a planning 
application. 

 

22



 

 

Other material considerations 
 

70. Reference needs to be made to the submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029, July 2014. However, very little weight can be given to these 
policies as, although the Submission Local Plan has not been formally 
withdrawn, the Council has confirmed that it has decided to prepare a new 
local plan which will cover the period up to 2036. With regard to this 
application, the new policies essentially echo these of the current plan and are 
not considered to affect the recommendation put forward. 

 
Conclusion 

 
71. In light of the assessment above, the proposed development is considered to 

comply with the Saved Local Plan policies and is consistent with the National 
Planning Policy Framework. The proposal is considered to have overcome the 
previous reasons for refusal and the recommendation is therefore to permit, 
subject to conditions. 

 
 
 
 

23



 

 

 
 

24



 
 
APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR DECISION 
 
CHANDLER'S FORD & HILTINGBURY Wednesday 06 July 2016 Case Officer Gary Osmond 

 
 
SITE: Hiltonbury Farmhouse, North Millers Dale, Chandler's 

Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1SZ 
 
 Ref. F/16/78284 Received: 24/03/2016     (13/07/2016) 
 
 
APPLICANT: Mr K Phipps 

 
PROPOSAL: Change of use of open space to private beer garden & 

provision of external cold-room, installation of extractor 
fans & erection of 1.2m high timber palisade fence 

  
AMENDMENTS: 26/05/2016 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
PERMIT 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
(1)  The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the 

date of this decision. 15.071 001 Rev.B, 15.071 002, 15.071 041, 15.071 202 
Rev.B & 15.071 241.  Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 

  
(2)  The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the 

date of this decision.   Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 

  
(3)  The development hereby approved shall not be implemented until details of the 

appearance, colour and finish of the fence which will surround the approved 
beer garden/external seating area have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. These approved details must then be 
implemented in full prior to opening of the public house.  Reason: In the interests 
of amenity and to protect the setting of the listed building. 

  

25

Agenda Item 9



(4)  Notwithstanding the details submitted, the fence to be erected around the beer 
garden/external seating area hereby approved shall be no more than 1.0 metre 
in height, and only land within the confines of this fenced area - i.e. between the 
fence and public house - shall be used for the purposes of a beer 
garden/external seating area.  Reason: In the interests of amenity and to protect 
the public open space. 

  
(5)  Should the public house close or its approved use change, the land hereby 

approved for use as a beer garden/external seating area shall be reinstated to 
its former use as public amenity land and all structures and boundary treatment 
removed within a period of three months.  Reason: In the interests of amenity 
and to protect the setting of the listed building. 

  
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a 
timely manner. 

  
 

 
 
Report: 

 
This application has been referred to Committee by Councillors Atkinson, 
Grajewski and Hughes and because it has proved controversial.  

 
Description of Application 

 
1. The application is split into two main elements, the first of which seeks 

approval for a number of alterations to the pub building in order to improve its 
kitchen facilities, including the provision of an external cold store and 
installation of external extractor fans. The second element of the application 
seeks the formation of an enclosed beer garden area by using a portion of the 
adjoining open space land and erecting a 1.2 metre high timber palisade 
fence, which would amount to a change of use of the relevant land. 

 
Site Characteristics 

 
2. The Hiltonbury Farmhouse is a Grade II listed building which was enlarged 

and converted into a public house in the early 1980s to serve the then new 
North Millers Dale estate. To the rear north-eastern side is a small yard area 
bounded by a brick wall and used for bin storage and where it is intended to 
place the external cold store. To the south-western side looking onto the 
adjoining open space is a patio/terrace area with no form of boundary 
treatment at present. To the north-west is the front of the old farmhouse with a 
small paved area which provides a few parking spaces. However, the most 
used entrance to the pub is from the car park on its eastern side. While this 
car park is used by most customers using the pub it is in fact a public car park 
for the use of anyone and is not specifically for the sole use of the pub. 

26



 
3. The adjoining open space to the south is an informal grass area with a 

number of large shrubs and some trees with and around its edge. While not 
suitable for any formal recreation space, for sport, etc. it nonetheless does 
provide an attractive outlook for surrounding properties which look onto it and 
for informal play and recreation. 

 
Character of Locality 

 
4. There is a small hall currently used as a children’s nursery next to the 

application site and a further car park associated with this just to the north. 
However, the surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature and 
made up of mainly two storey detached dwellings dating from the early 1980s. 

 
Relevant Planning History 

 
5. In addition to this current planning application are concurrent listed building 

and advertisement applications (L/16/78285 & A/16/78508) both of which it is 
intended to consider at the same Local Area Committee meeting. 

 
6. Earlier this year planning and listed building consent was granted for 

alterations to the south-western elevation to enlarge the existing French doors 
and construct an open timber pergola. Prior to this are a number of planning 
and listed building applications from the early and mid-1980s when the 
farmhouse was converted into the present public house. 

 
Representations Received 

 
7. A total of 21 representations were received from immediate and surrounding 

neighbours to the originally submitted proposals, including the North Millers 
Dale Community Association and one letter of support. While most had no 
issue with the works required in order to improve and refurbish the building, 
some concerns were raised regarding the noise of extractor fans. However, 
the overriding concern was the intended enclosure of the adjoining open 
space for sole use of the pub. 

 
8. Following these initial objections an amended scheme has been submitted by 

the applicant which much reduces the area it is intended to enclose and use 
as a beer garden. Neighbours and those who commented on the original 
proposals were informed of the amendment and asked to comment. To date 
17 further representations have been received which essentially raise the 
same concern that any of the existing open space be encloses and turned 
over for the sole use of the pub. 

 
Consultation Responses 

 
9. Head of Regeneration & Planning Policy (Conservation Officer) – The 

erection of the proposed fencing and enclosure of the adjoining open space 
will have a negative impact upon the listed building and its setting. However, 
“Any building needs occupation and use to keep it healthy with the fabric of 

27



listed buildings benefitting more than the average. Given the unusual 
circumstances of this building, alternative uses are going to be difficult if not 
impossible to find but these circumstances do not affect its use as a pub, 
however with many pubs closing each week due to modern-day social and 
financial pressures any assistance will be of help. The introduction of a picket 
fence around part of the open space in which the building stands will affect 
the setting of this building and therefore count as harm to the listed building 
but it will not be across the front of the building which is the most important 
elevation and set closer to the building than the previous scheme will allow a 
large portion of the grassed area to remain as public open space without 
causing substantial harm to the setting. 

 
10. Taking a long term view, the introduction of a low timber fence which is 

temporary in nature, is a small price to pay for the wellbeing of this valuable 
heritage asset by means of assisting the viability of the existing use which is 
unlikely to prosper by reliance on the immediate inhabitants only and no 
passing trade.” 

 
11. Head of Environmental Health – “The proposals for the use of open space 

as private pub garden have the potential to lead to the generation of noise 
associated with this use. Incorporating this area as part of the pub has the 
potential to increase and intensify its use, which may have an adverse impact 
on neighbouring residential properties. We are not seeking to attach planning 
conditions in relation to the noise generation potential as this matter is 
something that needs to be managed under the licensing conditions of the 
premises. However should Environmental Health receive complaints relating 
to noise from the pub garden we would have a duty to investigate and if 
necessary require the pub operator to abate the noise nuisance.” 

 
12. Head of Transportation & Engineering – No highway objection. 

 
13. Chandler’s Ford Parish Council – “The Parish Council objects to this 

application for change of use of open space to a private, fenced in, beer 
garden due to the loss of valued community space that was protected in an 
earlier planning condition for housing development. It also objects, as a result 
of parishioner representation due to increased noise and the potential for 
increased conflict between the neighbouring community and owners/users of 
the pub.” 

 
Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site 

 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 

 Affects Setting of Listed Building 

 Listed Building Grade II 
 

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved Policies: 59.BE, 
145.OS, 146.OS & 174.LB 

28



 

 Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014 Policies: 
DM1, DM10 & DM31 

 
14. The Submitted Local Plan comprises: the Revised Pre-submission Eastleigh 

Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, published February 2014; and the Schedule 
of Proposed Minor Changes, submitted to the Secretary of State in July 2014. 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents 

 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury 
Character Areas 

 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 
15. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that applications for 

planning permission must be determined in accordance with the development 
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Para 14 sets out a 
general presumption in favour of sustainable development and states that 
development proposals which accord with the development plan should be 
approved without delay. Where the development plan is absent, silent, or 
relevant policies are out-of-date planning permission should be granted 
unless the adverse impacts of the development would outweigh the benefits; 
or specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be 
restricted (paragraph 14). Local plan policies that do not accord with the 
NPPF are now deemed to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF requires that due 
weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their 
degree of consistency with the NPPF. In other words the closer the policies in 
the plan accord to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that 
may be given. 

 
16. Paragraph 17 states that one of the twelve core principles of the NPPF is that 

planning should “proactively drive and support sustainable economic 
development to deliver the homes, business and industrial units, infrastructure 
and thriving local places that the country needs.” Paragraph 19 states that 
“The Government is committed to ensuring that the planning system does 
everything it can to support sustainable economic growth. Planning should 
operate to encourage and not act as an impediment to sustainable growth. 
Therefore significant weight should be placed on the need to support 
economic growth through the planning system.” 

 
17. It goes on to state in paragraph 126 that “Local planning authorities should set 

out in their Local Plan a positive strategy for the conservation and enjoyment 
of the historic environment, including heritage assets most at risk through 
neglect, decay or other threats, in doing so, they should recognise that 
heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource and conserve them in a manner 
appropriate to their significance.” 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance  

29



 
18. Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the consideration 

of planning applications.  
 

Policy Commentary 
 

19. The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria against which 
this application will be assessed with particular regard to planning policy and 
the principle of that proposed, the layout, design and appearance of that 
proposed, the proposed change of use of land, impact upon the listed 
building, impact upon the residential amenity of neighbouring properties, as 
well as the general amenity and character of the surrounding area. 

 
Comment on Consultation Responses and Representations Received 

 
20. All comments are noted and responded to where appropriate below. 

 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 

 
21. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:- 

 
22. "If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 

determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must 
be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise." 

 
23. In addition, the proposal affects a Listed Building or its setting and section 

66(1) of the Planning (Listed Building & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states: 
 

24. “In considering whether to grant planning permission for development 
which affects a Listed Building or its setting, the Local Planning Authority … 
shall have regard to the desirability of reserving the building or its setting or 
any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses”. 

 
25. In this case policy issues for consideration include: 

 
Planning Policy & Principle 

 
26. The application site lies within the urban edge where the basic principle of 

development is considered to be acceptable, with any formal planning 
approval being based upon the exact nature, design and impact of that 
proposed being considered appropriate and in accordance with the relevant 
Local Plan policies and Supplementary Planning Documents. The most 
relevant policies in this case are saved Policies 59.BE, 145.OS, 146.OS & 
174.LB of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011). 

 
27. Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan is a wide ranging policy which requires 

development to take full and proper account of the context of the site including 
the character and appearance of the locality and be appropriate in mass, 

30



scale, materials, layout, design and siting. It also requires a high standard of 
landscape design, a satisfactory means of access and layout for vehicles, 
cyclists and pedestrians, to make provision for refuse and cycle storage and 
avoid unduly impacting on neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of 
light, loss of outlook, and noise and fumes. Also of relevance is Policy DM1 of 
the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014, which 
essentially reiterates the above requirements. 

 
28. Saved Policy 145.OS is intended to prevent the loss of public open space and 

sets out a number of criteria which must be met before any loss would be 
considered acceptable. The loss of open space land will only be considered 
acceptable if: the proposed development is ancillary to the principle use of the 
site and will not result in the loss of any sports pitches; it only affects land 
incapable of forming a playing field/pitch; the space lost can be suitably 
replaced; and the proposed development on its own would be sufficient to 
mitigate for the loss of the open space land. These requirements are 
reiterated within Policy DM31 of the Submitted Local Plan. 

 
29. The area of land adjacent to the pub is not formal adopted public open space. 

It is not owned or controlled by the Council but was retained by the original 
land owners, Cranbury Estates, to be used as an open green amenity area for 
the North Millers Dale estate and to assist in preserving the setting of the 
listed farmhouse. The land in question is not capable of forming a sports pitch 
and is not large enough to be used as a formal recreation ground. Strictly 
speaking therefore, saved Policy 145.OS is not directly relevant as it is really 
intended to protect formal sports and recreation space. However, the land 
does nonetheless provide an attractive green amenity space for use of the 
estate. 

 
30. Saved Policy 146.OS of the adopted Local Plan states that, “Development 

proposals which would have a detrimental impact on the green network will be 
refused.” Given the prominence of the area of open space for the estate, the 
issue relating to the proposed change of use element of this application is 
whether it would result in a detrimental impact. 

 
31. Finally, saved Policy 174.LB is also relevant and relates to development 

affecting listed buildings and states that development “will not be permitted if it 
would result in a detrimental impact on the building or its setting.” These 
requirements are reiterated within Policy DM10 of the Submitted Local Plan. 

 
32. In simple principle terms therefore, the proposed alterations and 

improvements to the building are acceptable, dependent upon the exact 
details of that proposed. With regards to the intended change of use of the 
adjoining open space land, this is not as clear cut because it could be argued 
that saved Policy 145.OS is not directly relevant in this case. However, Policy 
146.OS is but sets out that detrimental impact will not be acceptable. The 
issue therefore is what impact would this proposal have and would it be 
detrimental in planning terms? 

 
Layout, Design & Appearance 

31



 
33. Planning and listed building consent was granted earlier this year for 

alterations to the existing French doors on the south-west elevation of the 
building to widen the opening, together with some internal works to open up 
and improve the space available. This latest application seeks approval for 
the provision of an external cold store within the rear yard area, together with 
the replacement and addition of a number of intake and extract vents to the 
exterior of the building which would serve the enlarged and improved kitchen. 
Given that the cold store and vents are all to be located within the rear walled 
yard area away from public view and within the 1980s extension to the original 
building, this element of the application proposals is considered to be 
acceptable and will result in no visual or physical harm. As such these 
elements of the application are considered to meet the requirements of saved 
Policies 59.BE and 174.LB of the adopted Local Plan. 

 
34. The other and more contentious element of the application is the proposed 

enclosure and change of use of part of the adjoining open space land for use 
as a beer garden. Given that there is already a paved patio/terrace area 
immediately adjacent to the building the only physical change would be the 
erection of a 1.2 metre high round topped timber palisade fence around the 
area intended for use as the beer garden. While the change of use of the land 
does require formal planning consent, the physical erection of the fence, at 
under 2.0 metres in height and not being adjacent to a highway, does not 
require planning approval and can be erected via permitted development 
under Class A of Part 2 of The Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015. 

 
Change of Use of Land 

 
35. To the south of the old Farmhouse is an area of open space consisting of 

grass, shrubbery and trees which provides an attractive setting for the listed 
building and a general informal amenity area for local residents. Due to its 
size, shape and where trees and planting are located, it is not suitable for any 
formal recreational space such as a sports pitch or play area but nonetheless 
is important for locals and the character of this part of the North Millers Dale 
estate, as well as the setting of the listed building. 

 
36. Ownership of the land was retained by Cranbury Estates when the North 

Millers Dale estate was built in the early 1980s. Part of this planning 
permission, as well as preserving Hiltonbury Farmhouse and converting it into 
a public house included the provision of an area of public open space around 
the farmhouse. The legal agreement relating to this original planning 
permission states in clause 7. “The owner (Cranbury Estates) hereby agrees 
to lay out landscape and subsequently maintain as car park and public open 
space the land around the proposed village hall and Hiltonbury Farmhouse 
within the area edged in blue on the attached plan”. The plan referred to 
clearly identifies the area of open space to the south of the Farmhouse. 

 
37. This area of land is approximately 1750sqm in total area, with approximately 

600sqm being covered by trees and large shrubs. It is proposed that around 

32



300sqm of this land immediately adjacent to the south side of the Farmhouse 
be enclosed and used as a beer garden/external dining area, which equates 
to between 20% and 25% of the total area, with the remainder being left open 
for public use. 

 
38. While this would still leave the majority of the usable open space available for 

general recreational purposes, it would result in a loss of open space contrary 
to saved Policy 145.OS and in contravention of the original legal agreement 
signed in 1980. However, the situation may not be quite as clear cut as it 
initially appears, as a further significant material consideration is Hiltonbury 
Farmhouse itself (see below). There is also a question of how enforceable a 
36 year old legal agreement actually is, particularly given that no clear 
timescales are set out. 

 
39. Although there is no indication that the applicant intends to use this land 

without planning consent there is nothing in planning terms to prevent a fence 
from being erected on the land or the intended garden area being demarcated 
in some other way, i.e. planting. Equally, if there is no defined garden area 
there is nothing to prevent tables and chairs or patrons from spilling out onto 
the open space. That being the case, it could be argued that physically 
enclosing a garden area will ensure that there is a clear distinction between 
what is public and what is associated with the Farmhouse. If approved, 
conditions to this affect could be applied spelling out exactly where the fence 
can be positioned and what land is or is not permitted for use by the pub. 
Condition could also be applied to ensure that the fence, etc. is removed 
should the pub close again or the garden area no longer required, thereby 
ensuring that the open space land is not lost forever. 

 
Impact on Listed Building 

 
40. Given the minor nature of the physical alterations to the buildings, and that 

they are to the rear of the later 1980s extension, it is considered that there 
would be no adverse physical impact upon the building itself. However, the 
proposed change of use of the adjoining land and erection of the fence will 
have an impact upon the setting of the listed Farmhouse. 

 
41. Presently the Farmhouse has no form of boundary treatment to its southern 

side, allowing uninterrupted views of the building across the open space. 
While the proposed fence would only be 1.2 metres in height it will impact 
upon the building’s setting, as would the presence of tables, chairs and 
parasols which would be contained within the garden area. Although not 
unexpected in the context of a public house or restaurant, these 
features/items would have a negative impact upon the setting of the listed 
building. However, Policy 174.LB states that proposals which affect a listed 
building will not be acceptable if they would “result in a detrimental impact on 
the building or its setting.” The proposed fence, etc. are all temporary features 
which could be easily removed without resulting in any lasting harm to the 
building. It would therefore be hard to argue that they would have a 
detrimental impact. 

 

33



42. As has been highlighted by the Borough’s Conservation Officer, while there 
may well be harm to the setting of the building, there is a longer term view 
which must be taken into consideration. As a listed building the Farmhouse is 
designated for its age, architectural quality and importance in terms of local 
history. As such the Local Planning Authority has a duty to assist in its 
protection. The best and most effective way to ensure that an important 
building such as the Farmhouse is protected and properly maintained is to 
ensure that it remains in use. 

 
43. By submitting this and the other recent and concurrent applications, the 

applicant has demonstrated a desire to refurbish and reopen the pub. The 
Farmhouse is an attractive building with significant character and good setting 
which has the potential to be a successful business. However, it is hampered 
by its location in the middle of a modern housing estate on a road with very 
little or no real passing trade. While seemingly popular with local residents, 
relying purely on local trade obviously was not sufficient to keep the pub in 
business. As such, if it is to be a success the new Hiltonbury Farmhouse will 
need to use word of mouth and the creation of a good reputation if it is to 
remain open. Part of this would be providing an attractive environment for its 
patrons, which would include an external seating area. 

 
44. As such a balance needs to be achieved between what is acceptable harm to 

the building and its setting verses ensuring its long term survival. In this 
instance, while it is acknowledged that the creation of a beer garden and the 
associated paraphernalia which goes with such a use would result in some 
harm to the building, it would be a small price to pay to help ensure the 
building’s future wellbeing and protection. If in future the new Farmhouse 
does not prove to be a success, the fence, seating, etc. can all be easily 
removed and a condition to this effect could be included as part of any 
planning approval. As such it is considered that the intensions of saved Policy 
174.LB of the adopted Local Plan would be met in this instance. 

 
Residential Amenity 

 
45. While the pub is currently closed, it had been in continuous operation since it 

opened in the mid-1980s. Its use as a pub has therefore been long 
established and it would seem accepted by most neighbours, many of whom 
have commented on how they are looking forward to it reopening. The 
amenity concerns raised relate to the proposed extractors and external cold 
store, as well as the intended use of the open space as a garden area.  

 
46. The building already has a number of extractor vents which served its original 

kitchen area. Those proposed will be much more modern examples which are 
quieter and more efficient and mounted within the building which will provide 
some noise attenuation. The vents would also direct expelled air into the 
existing walled rear service yard, the majority of which is in turn screened 
from neighbouring residential properties by trees and planting. The boundary 
wall and planting should provide good acoustic screening, thereby minimising 
disturbance to neighbouring residential properties. This is also considered to 
be the case for the proposed external cold store. Its condenser unit is 

34



mounted to the bottom of the store which will be positioned immediately next 
to the two metre high brick boundary wall. This should ensure that noise is 
kept to a minimum. No objection on this element of the application has been 
raised by the Head of Environmental Health. 

 
47. With regards to the proposed beer garden, some concerns have been raised 

that this will result in increased noise and disturbance to surrounding 
properties. While there has always been an external patio/terrace area, that 
proposed could intensify external activities, with the area being used for more 
formal dining, rather than a ‘traditional’ beer garden. However, it is proposed 
that the reopened Farmhouse will be more food orientated rather than purely 
a drinking establishment. That being the case, the nature of future patrons is 
unlikely to result in any significant issues of disturbance for immediate 
neighbours in the same way a traditional drinking based pub would, 
particularly in the evenings. 

 
48. As such it is considered that the minor alterations to the building and creation 

of a formal pub garden are unlikely to result in any unacceptable disturbance 
or amenity issues for residents. This view has been backed up by the Head of 
Environmental Health who always has the ability to intervene and apply 
restrictions and use Environmental Health or licencing legislation if required in 
future. 

 
Amenity & Character of Area 

 
49. Both the open space and Hiltonbury Farmhouse are important and prominent 

parts of North Millers Dale’s character, of which harm to either would have a 
negative impact upon the area’s visual amenity. The initial reaction to the 
proposed change of use of part of the current open space land for use as a 
beer garden/external seating area may well be to resist. However, as has 
been discussed above, there is also a longer term impact to take into 
consideration relating to the protection of the listed building. 

 
50. It is accepted that there is significant local opposition to the change of use but 

committee Members will also have to take into consideration the Local 
Planning Authority’s duty to ensure the protection of a valuable heritage asset. 
Paragraph 140 of the NPPF states that “Local planning authorities should 
assess whether the benefits of a proposal for enabling development, which 
would otherwise conflict with planning policies but which would secure the 
future conservation of a heritage asset, outweigh the disbenefits of departing 
from those policies.” 

 
51. Also of importance is the Local Planning Authority’s duty to support the local 

economy and business. NPPF paragraph 19 states that “The Government is 
committed to ensuring that the planning system does everything it can to 
support sustainable economic growth. Planning should operate to encourage 
and not act as an impediment to sustainable growth. Therefore significant 
weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth through the 
planning system.” 

 

35



52. If planning consent is not granted for the proposed change of use, there is the 
risk that the reopened Farmhouse will not be a success and close again or 
that the applicant will decide not to undertake the refurbishment of the 
Farmhouse and reopen the pub. This then raises the question of what would 
happen to the building. Given the residential nature of the surrounding area, 
suitable alternative uses are very limited. Past experience has shown that if a 
building is not occupied it will gradually fall into disrepair and can very quickly 
begin to have a negative impact upon the character and amenity of an area, 
attracting vandalism, antisocial behaviour and vermin. 

 
53. That being the case, it is considered that the sacrifice of a portion of the 

existing open space and the short to medium term harm caused by allowing 
the change of use proposed will in fact help to ensure the longer term 
protection of the character and amenity of North Millers Dale and the 
Hiltonbury Farmhouse. 

 
Other Material Considerations 

 
54. Reference needs to be made the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 

2011 - 2029, July 2014. However very little weight can be given to these 
policies as, although the Submission Local Plan has not been withdrawn the 
Council has confirmed that it has decided to prepare a new local plan which 
will cover the period up to 2036. With regards to this application, the new 
policies essentially echo those of the current plan and are not considered to 
affect the recommendation put forward. 

 
Conclusion 

 
55. While certainly not a clear cut decision, on balance it is considered that the 

planning application should be approved, including the proposed change of 
use of the current open space land, in order to help ensure the long term 
viability of the Farmhouse and in turn the character and amenity of the 
surrounding area. By approving the application the Local Planning Authority 
can apply much clearer conditions and restrictions, such as the exact position 
of the fence and what land can and cannot be used by the pub, thereby 
ensuring that the remainder of the public open space is protected from 
possible further encroachment. Conditions can also be applied to ensure that 
if the pub should go out of business or its use change that the fencing is 
removed and land reinstated back into general public use. As such the 
application is recommended for approval subject to the conditions set out 
above. 

36



 

37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CHANDLER'S FORD & HILTINGBURY Wednesday 06 July 2016 Case Officer Gary Osmond 

 
 
SITE: Hiltonbury Farmhouse, North Millers Dale, Chandler's 

Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1SZ 
 
 Ref. L/16/78285 Received: 22/03/2016     (13/07/2016) 
 
 
APPLICANT: Mr K Phipps 

 
PROPOSAL: Listed Building Consent: Change of use of open space to 

private pub garden & provision of external cold-room, 
installation of extractor fans & erection of 1.2m high 
timber palisade fence 

  
AMENDMENTS: 26/05/2016 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
GRANT LISTED BUILDING CONSENT 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
(1) The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the 

date of this decision. 15.071 001 Rev.B, 15.071 002, 15.071 041, 15.071 202 
Rev.B & 15.071 241.  Reason: To comply with Section 18 of the Planning [Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas] Act 1990. 

 
(2) The works hereby consented shall start no later than three years from the date of 

this permission.   Reason: To comply with Section 18 of the Planning [Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas] Act 1990. 

 
(3)  The development hereby approved shall not be implemented until details of the 

appearance, colour and finish of the fence which will surround the approved 
beer garden/external seating area have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. These approved details must then be 
implemented in full prior to opening of the public house.  Reason: In the interests 
of amenity and to protect the setting of the listed building. 

  
(4)  Notwithstanding the details submitted, the fence to be erected around the beer 

garden/external seating area hereby approved shall be no more than 1.0 metre 
in height, and only land within the confines of this fenced area - i.e. between the 

39

Agenda Item 10



 

 

fence and public house - shall be used for the purposes of a beer 
garden/external seating area.  Reason: In the interests of amenity and to protect 
the public open space. 

  
(5)  Should the public house close or its approved use change, the land hereby 

approved for use as a beer garden/external seating area shall be reinstated to 
its former use as public amenity land and all structures and boundary treatment 
removed within a period of three months.  Reason: In the interests of amenity 
and to protect the setting of the listed building. 

  
Note to Applicant: It is noted that there are a number of areas on the Hiltonbury 
Farmhouse which are in need of repair. The Local Planning Authority would be 
happy to provide advice on what works are required and how they can be 
undertaken in a manner which is appropriate for the listed building. 

  
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a 
timely manner. 

  
 

 
 
Report: 

 
This application has been referred to Committee for reasons of consistency. 

 
Description of Application 

 
1. This listed building application runs concurrently with planning application 

F/16/78284 and seeks approval for a number of alterations to the pub building 
in order to improve its kitchen facilities, including the provision of an external 
cold store and installation of external extractor fans, together with the 
formation of an enclosed pub garden area by using a portion of the adjoining 
open space and erecting a 1.2 metre high timber palisade fence. 

 
Site Characteristics 

 
2. The Hiltonbury Farmhouse is a Grade II listed building originally dating from 

the 16th Century and which was enlarged and converted into a public house in 
the early 1980s to serve the then new North Millers Dale estate. To the rear 
north-eastern side is a small yard area bounded by a brick wall and used for 
bin storage and where it is intended to place the external cold store. To the 
south-western side looking onto the adjoining open space is a patio/terrace 
area with no form of boundary treatment at present. To the north-west is the 
front of the old farmhouse with a small paved area which provides a few 
parking spaces. However, the most used entrance to the pub is from the car 
park on its eastern side. While this car park is used by most customers using 

40



 

 

the pub it is in fact a public car park for the use of anyone and is not 
specifically for the sole use of the pub. 

 
3. The adjoining open space to the south of the pub is an informal grass area 

with a number of large shrubs and some trees with and around its edge. While 
not suitable for any formal recreation space, for sport, etc. it nonetheless does 
provide an attractive outlook for surrounding properties which look onto it and 
for informal play and recreation, as well as providing a setting for the 
Farmhouse. 

 
Character of Locality 

 
4. There is a small hall currently used as a children’s nursery next to the pub and 

a further car park associated with this just to the north of the pub. However, 
the surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature and made up of 
mainly two storey detached dwellings dating from the early 1980s. 

 
Relevant Planning History 

 
5. In addition to this current listed building application are concurrent planning 

and advertisement applications (F/16/78284 & A/16/78508) both of which it is 
intended to consider at the same Local Area Committee meeting. 

 
6. Earlier this year planning and listed building consent was granted for 

alterations to the south-western elevation to enlarge the existing French doors 
and construct an open timber pergola. Prior to this are a number of planning 
and listed building applications from the early and mid-1980s when the 
farmhouse was converted into the present pub. 

 
Representations Received 

 
7. A total of nine representations have been received from immediate and 

surrounding neighbours to the originally submitted proposals, including one 
letter of support. While most had no issue with the works required to the pub 
in order to improve and refurbish it, the overriding concern was the intended 
enclosure of the adjoining open space for sole use of the pub. 

 
8. Following these initial objections an amended scheme has been submitted by 

the applicant which much reduces the area it is intended to enclose and use 
as the pub garden. Neighbours and those who commented on the original 
proposals were informed of the amendment and asked to comment. To date 
two further representations have been received which essentially raise the 
same concern that any of the existing open space be encloses and turned 
over for the sole use of the pub. 

 
Consultation responses 

 
9. Head of Regeneration & Planning Policy (Conservation Officer) – The 

building is in need of maintenance and repair in certain areas but no details of 
this have been included with the application. 

41



 

 

 
10. With regards to the proposed beer garden, the erection of the proposed 

fencing and enclosure of the adjoining open space will have a negative impact 
upon the listed building and its setting. However, “Any building needs 
occupation and use to keep it healthy with the fabric of listed buildings 
benefitting more than the average. Given the unusual circumstances of this 
building, alternative uses are going to be difficult if not impossible to find but 
these circumstances do not affect its use as a pub, however with many pubs 
closing each week due to modern-day social and financial pressures any 
assistance will be of help. The introduction of a picket fence around part of the 
open space in which the building stands will affect the setting of this building 
and therefore count as harm to the listed building but it will not be across the 
front of the building which is the most important elevation and set closer to the 
building than the previous scheme will allow a large portion of the grassed 
area to remain as public open space without causing substantial harm to the 
setting. 

 
11. Taking a long term view, the introduction of a low timber fence which is 

temporary in nature, is a small price to pay for the wellbeing of this valuable 
heritage asset by means of assisting the viability of the existing use which is 
unlikely to prosper by reliance on the immediate inhabitants only and no 
passing trade.” 

 
12. Chandler’s Ford Parish Council – “The Parish Council objects to this 

application for change of use of open space to a private, fenced in, beer 
garden due to the loss of valued community space that was protected in an 
earlier planning condition for housing development. It also objects, as a result 
of parishioner representation due to increased noise and the potential for 
increased conflict between the neighbouring community and owners/users of 
the pub.” 

 
Policy context:  Designation Applicable to Site 

 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 

 Affects Setting of Listed Building 

 Listed Building Grade II 
 

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved Policies: 59.BE & 
174.LB 

 

 Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014 Policies: 
DM1 & DM10 

 
13. The Submitted Local Plan comprises: the Revised Pre-submission Eastleigh 

Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, published February 2014; and the Schedule 
of Proposed Minor Changes, submitted to the Secretary of State in July 2014. 

 

42



 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 

14. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that applications for 
planning permission must be determined in accordance with the development 
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Para 14 sets out a 
general presumption in favour of sustainable development and states that 
development proposals which accord with the development plan should be 
approved without delay. Where the development plan is absent, silent, or 
relevant policies are out-of-date planning permission should be granted 
unless the adverse impacts of the development would outweigh the benefits; 
or specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be 
restricted (paragraph 14). Local plan policies that do not accord with the 
NPPF are now deemed to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF requires that due 
weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their 
degree of consistency with the NPPF. In other words the closer the policies in 
the plan accord to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that 
may be given. 

 
15. It goes on to state in paragraph 126 that “Local planning authorities should set 

out in their Local Plan a positive strategy for the conservation and enjoyment 
of the historic environment, including heritage assets most at risk through 
neglect, decay or other threats, in doing so, they should recognise that 
heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource and conserve them in a manner 
appropriate to their significance.” 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance  

 
16. Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the consideration 

of planning applications.  
 

Policy commentary 
 

17. The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria which this 
application will be assessed with particular regard to planning policy and the 
principle of that proposed, its layout and design, and impact upon the listed 
building and its setting. 

 
Comment on Consultation Responses and Representations Received 

 
18. With regards to the Borough Conservation Officer’s comments on the 

requirement for repair and maintenance of the building, while it is noted that 
this work is needed, it does not form part of the listed building application. As 
such it is not possible to include any conditions requiring this work to be 
undertaken prior to the Farmhouse reopening. It is however reasonable to 
include an informative to this effect advising that this work be undertaken. 

 
Assessment of Proposal 

 
19. Section 16 (2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Compulsory Purchase Act 

1990 states:  

43



 

 

 
20. “In considering whether to grant Listed Building Consent for any works, the 

Local Planning Authority shall have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or 
historic interest which is possesses”. 

 
21. In this case policy issues for consideration include: 

 
Planning Policy & Principle 

 
22. Given that the application would affect a listed building and its setting the 

most relevant policies in this case are saved Policies 59.BE & 174.LB of the 
adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011). 

 
23. Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan is a wide ranging policy which requires 

development to take full and proper account of the context of the site including 
the character and appearance of the locality and be appropriate in mass, 
scale, materials, layout, design and siting. It also requires a high standard of 
landscape design, a satisfactory means of access and layout for vehicles, 
cyclists and pedestrians, to make provision for refuse and cycle storage and 
avoid unduly impacting on neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of 
light, loss of outlook, and noise and fumes. Also of relevance is Policy DM1 of 
the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014, which 
essentially reiterates the above requirements. 

 
24. Saved Policy 174.LB specifically relates to development affecting listed 

buildings and states that development “will not be permitted if it would result in 
a detrimental impact on the building or its setting.” These requirements are 
reiterated within Policy DM10 of the Submitted Local Plan. 

 
25. In simple principle terms therefore, the proposed alterations and 

improvements to the building are acceptable, dependent upon the exact 
details of that proposed. The issue therefore is what impact would these 
proposals have and would they be detrimental in planning terms? 

 
Layout & Design 

 
26. As has been highlighted above, planning and listed building consent was 

granted earlier this year for a timber pergola and alterations to the existing 
French doors on the south-west elevation of the building to widen the 
opening, together with some internal works to open up and improve the space 
available. This latest application seeks approval for the provision of an 
external cold store within the rear yard area, together with the replacement 
and addition of a number of intake and extract vents to the exterior of the 
building which would serve the enlarged and improved kitchen. Given that the 
cold store and vents are all to be located within the rear yard area away from 
public view and within the 1980s extension to the original building, this 
element of the application proposals is considered to be acceptable and will 
result in no visual or physical harm. As such these elements of the application 

44



 

 

are considered to meet the requirements of saved Policies 59.BE and 174.LB 
of the adopted Local Plan. 

 
27. The other and more contentious element of the application is the proposed 

enclosure and change of use of part of the adjoining open space land for use 
as the pub’s garden. Given that the pub already has a paved patio/terrace 
area immediately adjacent to the building, the only physical changes would be 
the erection of a 1.2 metre high round topped timber palisade fence around 
the area intended for use as the pub garden, together with the associated 
tables, chairs and parasols. While the change of use of the land does require 
formal listed building consent due to its impact upon the building’s setting, the 
erection of the fence, at under 2.0 metres in height and not being adjacent to 
a highway, does not require planning or listed building approval and can be 
erected via permitted development under Class A of Part 2 of The Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015. 

 
Impact on Listed Building & Setting 

 
28. Given the minor nature of the physical alterations to the buildings, and that 

they are to the rear of the later 1980s extension, it is considered that there 
would be no adverse physical impact upon the building itself. However, the 
proposed change of use of the adjoining land and erection of the fence will 
have an impact upon the setting of the listed Farmhouse. 

 
29. Presently the Farmhouse has no form of boundary treatment to its southern 

side, allowing uninterrupted views of the building across the open space. 
While the proposed fence would only be 1.2 metres in height it will impact 
upon the building’s setting, as would the presence of tables, chairs and 
parasols which would be contained within the garden area. Although not 
unexpected in the context of a public house or restaurant, these 
features/items would have a negative impact upon the setting of the listed 
building. However, Policy 174.LB states that proposals which affect a listed 
building will not be acceptable if they would “result in a detrimental impact on 
the building or its setting.” The proposed fence, etc. are all temporary features 
which could be easily removed without resulting in any lasting harm to the 
building. It would therefore be hard to argue that they would have a 
detrimental impact. 

 
30. Also as has been highlighted by the Borough’s Conservation Officer, while 

there may well be harm to the setting of the building, there is a longer term 
view which must be taken into consideration. As a listed building the 
Farmhouse is designated for its age, architectural quality and importance in 
terms of local history. As such the Local Planning Authority has a duty to 
assist in its protection. The best and most effective way to ensure that an 
important building such as the Farmhouse is protected and properly 
maintained is to ensure that it remains in use. 

 
31. By submitting this and the other recent and concurrent applications, the 

applicant has demonstrated a desire to refurbish and reopen the pub. The 
Farmhouse is an attractive building with significant character and good setting 

45



 

 

which has the potential to be a successful business. However, it is hampered 
by its location in the middle of a modern housing estate on a road with very 
little or no real passing trade. While seemingly popular with local residents, 
relying purely on local trade obviously was not sufficient to keep the pub in 
business. As such, if it is to be a success the new Hiltonbury Farmhouse will 
need to use word of mouth and the creation of a good reputation if it is to 
remain open. Part of this would be providing an attractive environment for its 
patrons, which would include an external seating area. 

 
32. As such a balance needs to be achieved between what is acceptable harm to 

the building and its setting verses ensuring its long term survival. In this 
instance, while it is acknowledged that the creation of a beer garden and the 
associated paraphernalia which goes with such a use would result in some 
harm to the building, it would be a small price to pay to help ensure the 
building’s future wellbeing and protection. If in future the new Farmhouse 
does not prove to be a success, the fence, seating, etc. can all be easily 
removed and a condition to this effect could be included as part of any 
planning approval. As such it is considered that the intensions of saved Policy 
174.LB of the adopted Local Plan would be met in this instance. 

 
Other Material Considerations 

 
33. Reference needs to be made the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 

2011 - 2029, July 2014. However very little weight can be given to these 
policies as, although the Submission Local Plan has not been withdrawn the 
Council has confirmed that it has decided to prepare a new local plan which 
will cover the period up to 2036. With regards to this application, the new 
policies essentially echo those of the current plan and are not considered to 
affect the recommendation put forward. 

 
Conclusions 

 
34. While certainly not a clear cut decision, on balance it is considered that the 

listed building application should be approved in order to help ensure the long 
term viability and protection of the Farmhouse. By approving the application 
the Local Planning Authority can apply much clearer conditions and 
restrictions, such as the exact position of the fence and what land can and 
cannot be used by the pub, thereby ensuring that the setting of the building is 
not further impacted. Conditions can also be applied to ensure that if the pub 
should go out of business or its use change that the fencing is removed and 
land reinstated to its previous use, thereby re-establishing the setting of the 
Farmhouse. As such the application is recommended for approval subject to 
the conditions set out above. 

 
 
 

46



 

 

 

47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 
CHANDLER'S FORD & HILTINGBURY Wednesday 06 July 2016 Case Officer Gary Osmond 

 
 
SITE: Hiltonbury Farmhouse, North Millers Dale, Chandler's 

Ford, Eastleigh, Hampshire, SO53 1SZ 
 
 Ref. A/16/78508 Received: 04/05/2016     (13/07/2016) 
 
 
APPLICANT:  
PROPOSAL: Display of 2no. non-illuminated hanging post signs, 1no. 

non-illuminated free standing sign, 2no. externally 
illuminated wall signs and 1no. non-illuminated wall sign 

  
AMENDMENTS: 14/06/2016 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
ADVERT CONSENT 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
(1)  The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the 

following plans numbered: 118779 - Planning maps 1-1250, 118779 - Planning 
maps 1-500 & 118779 - Planning/B.  Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in 
the interests of proper planning. 

  
(2)  This consent is for five years from the date of this decision and is subject to the 

five standard conditions set out in the Regulations.   
 

a: No advertisement to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the 
site (this includes land or buildings where the advertisement is displayed), or any 
other person with an interest in the site entitled to give permission.     

 
b: The siting or display of an advertisement is prohibited if it endangers anyone 
using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or aerodrome (civil or 
military), or would obscure or hinder the ready interpretation of any traffic sign, 
railway sign or aid to navigation by water or air. It also prohibits the siting or 
display of an advertisement that would hinder the operation of any device used 

49

Agenda Item 11



 

 

for the purpose of security or surveillance (such as closed circuit television 
cameras), or for measuring the speed of any vehicles (speed cameras or other 
speeding measuring devices.   

 
c: The advertisement and any land or building used for the purpose of its display 
to be maintained in a reasonably clean and tidy condition so that it does not 
impact the visual amenity of the site.   

 
d: Any structure or hoarding used for the display of advertisements to be 
maintained in a safe condition that does not endanger the public.   

 
e: Following the removal of advertisement the site shall be left in a condition that 
does not endanger the public and in a reasonably clean and tidy condition so 
that it does not impact the site’s visual amenity.   Reason: To comply with the 
advertisement regulations. 

  
(3)  The illumination of the consented signs shall be no greater than 600 candela per 

square metres and no light source shall be visible from the highway.  Reason: In 
the interests of highway safety/amenity. 

  
(4)  The consented signs shall not be illuminated outside the trading hours of the 

premises to which it relates.  Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and 
sustainability. 

  
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a 
timely manner. 

  
 

 
 
Advertisement Report: 

 
This application has been referred to Committee for reasons of consistency. 

 
Description of Application 

1. This application seeks consent for new and replacement signage at the 
Hiltonbury Farmhouse public house consisting of two non-illuminated hanging 
post signs, a non-illuminated freestanding sign, two externally illuminated wall 
signs and one non-illuminated wall sign. 

 
Site Characteristics 

 
2. The Hiltonbury Farmhouse is a Grade II listed building which was enlarged 

and converted into a public house in the early 1980s to serve the then new 
North Millers Dale estate. To the rear north-eastern side is a small yard area 
bounded by a brick wall and used for bin storage and where it is intended to 

50



 

 

place the external cold store. To the south-western side looking onto the 
adjoining open space is a patio/terrace area with no form of boundary 
treatment at present. To the north-west is the front of the old farmhouse with a 
small paved area which provides a few parking spaces. However, the most 
used entrance to the pub is from the car park on its eastern side. While this 
car park is used by most customers using the pub it is in fact a public car park 
for the use of anyone and is not specifically for the sole use of the pub. 

 
3. The adjoining open space to the south of the pub is an informal grass area 

with a number of large shrubs and some trees with and around its edge. While 
not suitable for any formal recreation space, for sport, etc. it nonetheless does 
provide an attractive outlook for surrounding properties which look onto it and 
for informal play and recreation. 

 
Character of Locality 

 
4. There is a small hall currently used as a children’s nursery next to the pub and 

a further car park associated with this just to the north of the pub. However, 
the surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature and made up of 
mainly two storey detached dwellings dating from the early 1980s. 

 
Relevant Planning History 

 
5. In addition to this advertisement planning application are concurrent planning  

and listed building applications (F/16/78284 & L/16/78285) both of which it is 
intended to consider at the same Local Area Committee meeting. 

 
6. Earlier this year planning and listed building consent was granted for 

alterations to the south-western elevation to enlarge the existing French doors 
and construct an open timber pergola. Prior to this are a number of planning 
and listed building applications from the early and mid-1980s when the 
farmhouse was converted into the present pub. 

 
Representations Received 

 
7. At the time of writing a total of five representations have been received 

relating to this advertisement application. All raise concerns and object to the 
number and location of the signs proposed, in particular the freestanding sign 
at the entrance to the car park which is to be placed on public open space 
land. Concerns are also raised that a number of the signs make reference to 
the ‘car park’ and ‘garden’. It has been pointed out that the car park is for 
general public use and is not solely for the use of the pub and that the pub 
does not presently have a dedicated garden area. 

 
Consultation Responses 

 
8. Head of Regeneration & Planning Policy (Conservation Officer) – “No pub 

is likely to survive without a decent trade and one wonders if the local 
residents will use it enough to provide this, so some signage is essential. Two 
questions - it is not clear from the information provided exactly where it is 

51



 

 

proposed the floodlights be fixed and secondly sign E does seem un-
necessarily large, if anything just car park would be sufficient.” 

 
9. Head of Transportation & Engineering – No objection. 

 
10. “However, 'Sign B' as shown on plans comes close to the footway on North 

Millers Dale. Applicants should note that if it overhangs the footway in any 
way it will be removed by HCC as highway authority. Its specific location must 
be set back far enough into site for this not to occur.” 

 
11. Condition restricting luminance levels recommended. 

 
12. Chandler’s Ford Parish Council – Comments awaited. 

 
Policy Context: Designation Applicable to Site 

 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 

 Affects Setting of Listed Building 

 Listed Building Grade II 
 

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 saved Policies: 67.BE & 
174.LB 

 

 Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014 Policies: 
DM1 & DM10 

 
13. The Submitted Local Plan comprises: the Revised Pre-submission Eastleigh 

Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, published February 2014; and the Schedule 
of Proposed Minor Changes, submitted to the Secretary of State in July 2014. 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents 

 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury 
Character Areas 

 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 
14. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that applications for 

planning permission must be determined in accordance with the development 
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Para 14 sets out a 
general presumption in favour of sustainable development and states that 
development proposals which accord with the development plan should be 
approved without delay. Where the development plan is absent, silent, or 
relevant policies are out-of-date planning permission should be granted 
unless the adverse impacts of the development would outweigh the benefits; 
or specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be 

52



 

 

restricted (paragraph 14). Local plan policies that do not accord with the 
NPPF are now deemed to be “out-of-date”. The NPPF requires that due 
weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their 
degree of consistency with the NPPF. In other words the closer the policies in 
the plan accord to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that 
may be given. 

 
15. Paragraph 67 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that “Poorly 

placed advertisements can have a negative impact on the appearance of the 
built environment.” It also states that “Advertisements should be subject to 
control only in the interests of amenity and public safety, taking account of 
cumulative impacts.” 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance  

 
16. Where material, this guidance should be afforded weight in the consideration 

of planning applications.  
 

Policy Commentary 
 

17. The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria which this 
application will be assessed with particular regard to the relevant planning 
policies and principle of development, the layout, design and impact upon the 
street scene and visual character of the surrounding area, impact upon the 
listed building, and on public safety. 

 
Comment on Consultation Responses and Representations Received 

 
18. Following comments received from neighbours and the Borough’s 

Conservation Officer, amendments have been secured which remove signs 
‘C’ & ‘E’, as well as amending the appearance of sign ‘B’. 

 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 

 
19. Regulation 3 (1) (2) (3) (as amended) of the Town and Country Planning 

(Control of Advertisement) Regulations 2007 states:-  “A local planning 
authority shall exercise their powers under these Regulations only in the 
interests of amenity and public safety, taking account of any material factors, 
and in particular: 

 
20. In the case of amenity, the general characteristics of the locality, including the 

presence of any feature of historic, architectural, cultural or similar interest, 
disregarding, if they think fit, any advertisement being displayed there; 

 
21. In the case of public safety: 

a. The safety of any person who may use any road, railway, waterway, 
harbour or aerodrome; 

53



 

 

b. Whether any display of advertisement is likely to obscure, or hinder the 
ready interpretation of, any road traffic sign, railway signal or aid to 
navigation by water or air. 

 
22. In determining an application for consent for the display of advertisements, or 

considering whether to make an order revoking or modifying a consent, the 
local planning authority may have regard to any material change in 
circumstances likely to occur within the period for which the consent is 
required or granted”. 

 
23. In this case policy issues for consideration include: 

 
Planning Policy & Principle 

 
24. The application site lies within the urban edge where the basic principle of 

development is considered to be acceptable, with any formal planning 
approval being based upon the exact nature, design and impact of that 
proposed being considered appropriate and in accordance with the relevant 
Local Plan policies and Supplementary Planning Documents. The most 
relevant policies in this case are saved Policies 67.BE & 174.LB of the 
adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011). 

 
25. Saved Policy 67.BE relates specifically to advertisements and states that 

consent will only be granted if the following criteria are met: “i) it does not 
detract from the character of the area and its surroundings in terms of design, 
size, materials, colour, positioning and the extent of signage; ii) if illuminated 
that it does not detract from the character of the locality; iii) it does not create 
a risk to public safety; and iv) it is not in a conservation area where Policy 
172.LB applies.” 

 
26. Saved Policy 174.LB is also relevant and relates to development affecting 

listed buildings and states that development “will not be permitted if it would 
result in a detrimental impact on the building or its setting.” These 
requirements are reiterated within Policy DM10 of the Submitted Local Plan. 

 
27. In simple principle terms that proposed is considered acceptable. 

 
Layout, Design, Street Scene & Area Character 

 
28. The proposed new signs to the building will replace existing signage and while 

of a differing design and form, they are of a very similar scale. Presently there 
is a ‘traditional’ freestanding sign at the entrance to The Deanery and 
surrounded by trees and planting. While visible during the winter months this 
existing sign is obscured by foliage for the majority of the year. It is therefore 
proposed to remove this sign and place a new freestanding post sign further 
north along North Millers Dale past the current bus stop where it would be 
much more easily seen. This would also be of a fairly traditional appearance 
and will not be illuminated. 

 

54



 

 

29. Overall therefore, the amended proposals are considered to be acceptable 
and will have no greater or adverse impact upon the street scene or general 
character of the area. 

 
Impact on Listed Building 

 
30. The only illuminated signs will be a small sign next to the north-western 

entrance at ground floor level and the fascia sign to the rendered gable end 
on the south-western elevation of the original Farmhouse. This would replace 
an existing externally illuminated sign and would be lit by fewer LED 
floodlights which would be tucked away out of sight under the eaves of the 
roof and behind the decorative bargeboards. To protect amenity a condition 
can be imposed to ensure that the signage is turned off when the pub is 
closed. 

 
31. Given that the new signage proposed will replace existing signage and is 

more subtle in its appearance and colour, it is not considered that there would 
be any detrimental impact upon the listed building. 

 
Public Safety 

 
32. As the free standing sign along North Millers Dale will not be illuminated no 

objection has been raised by the Head of Transportation & Engineering. None 
of the other signs are likely to lead to any highway or public safety issues and 
are therefore considered acceptable in this respect. 

 
Other material considerations 

 
33. Reference needs to be made the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 

2011 - 2029, July 2014. However very little weight can be given to these 
policies as, although the Submission Local Plan has not been withdrawn the 
Council has confirmed that it has decided to prepare a new local plan which 
will cover the period up to 2036. With regards to this application, the new 
policies essentially echo those of the current plan and are not considered to 
affect the recommendation put forward. 

 
Conclusion 

 
34. For the reasons given above, the application is recommended for approval 

subject to conditions regarding luminance levels and when illuminated signs 
can be lit. 

 
 
 

55



 

 

 
 
 

56



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2016/17 

 

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
 

Name of Organisation: CHANDLER'S FORD COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION 

2015-16 

Representative(s): 

Cllr D Pragnell 

Contact Officer: Helen Coleman 

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

To promote the benefit on the inhabitants of Chandler's Ford 
and the neighbourhood, to advance education, to provide 
facilities in the interests of social welfare, recreation and 
leisure and to improve, maintain and manage the affairs of the 
Community Centre. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

To provide facilities for and encourage members of the 
Association to participate in any or all of the following 
activities:-  whist, bridge, table tennis, music appreciation, 
Scrabble, social activities, dressmaking, play reading, 
sequence dancing and rambling.  To provide facilities for 
affiliated bodies to hold their meetings and activities.  To 
provide a source of income for the Association by the letting of 
the facilities of the Community Centre. 

No of meetings per year: 

 
Decided at the AGM. 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
Meetings are  held at the Community 
Centre and start at 7.00 pm unless 
otherwise advised.  Meetings are split 
between Council and an Executive 
Committee 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

No particular skills required. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

None. 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

No particular workload envisaged.  The member would attend 
Council and Executive Committee meetings and would 
hopefully provide the link between us and the E.C.C. should 
one be required. 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Mr G Partridge   
Chairman 
Chandler's Ford Community Association 
Community Centre 
Hursley Road   Chandler's Ford SO53 2FT 

57

Agenda Item 13



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2016/17 

 

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
 

Name of Organisation: HILTINGBURY COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION 

2015-16 

Representative(s): 

Mr J Duguid 

Contact Officer: Helen Coleman 

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

To build and manage a new community centre for the benefit 
of local residents.  The Association is a non political 
organisation and it is important that it remains independent 
and impartial to issues of race, religion, politics and all other 
forms of bias. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

To provide a new youth facility and range of social, sport and 
recreational and educational activities for all ages. 

No of meetings per year: 

 
Decided at the AGM. 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
Last Tuesday of every month 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

No particular skills required, but there is a need for non-
political impartiality. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

None 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Member would act as a link between the Community 
Association and the Council. 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Doreen Riches   
Secretary 
Hiltingbury Community Association 
45 Sycamore Avenue 
Chandler's Ford   SO53 5RG 

58



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2016/17 

 

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
 

Name of Organisation: NORTH MILLERS DALE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION 

2015-16 

Representative(s): 

Cllr P Holden-Brown 

Contact Officer: Helen Coleman 

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

The Committee should have 6 Members - 3 from Eastleigh 
Baptist Church, 1 from the Council and 2 from a Residents 
Association.  The objective is to supervise letting 
arrangements when not used by the Church's sub-tenant for a 
kindergarten. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

Adequate availability/opportunity for local community and 
private use. 

No of meetings per year: 

 
3 or 4 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
7.30  pm 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 
2/3 weeks 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

Ability to mediate.  Some knowledge of running a public hall an 
advantage. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Possibly. 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Mrs Doreen Lewry   
North Millers Dale Community Association 
8 Weavers Place 
Chandler's Ford 
SO53 1TU    

 

59



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	8 Planning Application - 52 Nichol Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh
	9 Planning Application - Hiltonbury Farmhouse, North Millers Dale, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh
	10 Planning Application - Hiltonbury Farmhouse, North Millers Dale, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh
	11 Planning Application - Hiltonbury Farmhouse, North Millers Dale, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh
	13 Appointments to Outside Bodies

